
Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
Directorate

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle, CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 227354 

Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

26 February 2020

To:  The Chair and Members of the Holehird 
Trust Joint Committee

Agenda
HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Thursday 5 March 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Committee Room 2, County Hall, Kendal 

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director- Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Daniel Hamilton
Direct Line: 07920700299
Email: daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Appointed by Eden Local Committee

Mr A Connell
Mr P Dew
Mr D Whipp

Appointment by South Lakeland Local Committee

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark
Ms B Gray

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

PART 1 - ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC  

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where



(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

4  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 December 2020 (copy 
enclosed).
 
(Pages 7 - 12)

5  CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017 - 2020 - 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND DISTRIBUTIONS

To consider a report from the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community 
Services (copy enclosed).
 
(Pages 13 - 24)

6  GRANT APPLICATIONS

To consider grant applications received by Cumbria Community Foundation (copy 
enclosed).

(Pages 25 - 48)



7  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 29 June 2020 in County Hall, Kendal.
  

PART 2 - ITEMS  CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

8  PROPERTY MATTERS

To consider a report from the Land Agent (copy enclosed).
 
(Pages 49 - 50)



This page is intentionally left blank



HHOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee held on Thursday, 19 
December 2019 at 10.00 am at Committee Room 2, County Hall, Kendal

PRESENT:

 

Mrs BC Gray (Chair)
Mr J Bland

Mr W Clark
Mr P Dew

Officers in Attendance:-

Mr D Hamilton - Democratic Services Officer
Mr D Rawle - Senior Estates Surveyor
Mr D Routledge
Mr M Towers
Ms J Dixon

- Finance Officer - Children's Services Finance
- Savills
- Savills 

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were receive from Mr A Connell. 

18 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest made on this occasion. 

19 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The meeting resolved to exclude the press and public during consideration of Item 8 
on the Agenda (Property Matters).

20 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOVED that, the minutes of the last meeting of the Holehird Trust 
Joint Committee held on 12 September 2019 be agreed 
as an accurate and complete record with the following 
amendment:-

7

Agenda Item 4



 Agenda Item 6 – Grant Applications: The approved grant for Kendal 
Gymnastics Club should read £2,000 in line with the recommendation. 

21 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

Members considered a report from the Director Finance (Section 151 Officer) which 
updated members on the income and expenditure of the Holehird Estate to date, 
and identified the amount available for grants and fees for the 2019-20 financial 
year. 

Discussion took place regarding the income and expenditure accounts for the eight 
months ended 30 November 2019 and it was acknowledged that the accounts were 
in a healthy condition.

Members were reminded that in the meeting held on 6th March 2017 the amount 
made available for distribution on grants for each year of the current agreement with 
Cumbria Community Foundation was set at £ 40,000 with fees of £ 4,000 (10% of 
grants awarded).

In 2018-19 the amount distributed on grants was £ 40,000.

As there were no unallocated amounts for the 2018-19 financial year no adjustment 
to the amounts available for 2019-20 need be made.

To date £ 20,705 had been distributed on grants leaving a further £ 19,295 available 
to be distributed during the 2019-20 financial year. 

During the audit of the 2017-18 accounts it was suggested that, due to capital and 
revenue expenditure not being accounted for separately that there is no further need 
for a Capital Reserve.

An in depth discussion took place over why it was no longer thought appropriate to 
keep a separate Capital Reserve. Whenever expenditure is incurred by the Trust on 
what would be accounted for as capital expenditure in commercial entities, an 
amount equal to the cost is transferred from the Capital Reserve to the Unrestricted 
Reserve. However, as capital and revenue expenditure are not accounted for 
separately by the Trust the cost of the capital ultimately comes from the Unrestricted 
Reserve. It was clarified that overall there would be no impact on the Trust’s 
reserves if the transfer was to take place.

RESOLVED that,

1) members note the amounts available for distribution on grants 
and fees for 2019-20 financial year. 

2) members approve the transfer of the balance of the Trust’s 
Capital Reserve to the Unrestricted Reserve. 

22 GRANT APPLICATIONS

8



Members considered the recommendations of the Senior Grants & Donor Services 
Officer from Cumbria Community Foundation. 

RESOLVED to approve the following grants:-

21921a Eden Sight Support
Supporting people with sight loss
Approved £2,000.00
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries
 
21811 Common Space:Common Humanity
Staff and running costs
Deferred for more information
Requested £3,250.00
Recommended £00.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

21911a Kirkby Lonsdale RUFC
New changing rooms
Approved £1,000.00
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21788 St George Community Parish Church
Refurbishment of flood relief hub
Approved £720.00.00
Requested £720.00
Recommended £720.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21764b South Lakeland Hydrotherapy
New roof
Approved £2,000.00
Requested £10,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21773 Hallgarth Senior Citizens
Community Centre rent
Approved £500.00
Requested £500.00

9



Recommended £500.00 
Priority – Older people
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

21756 Witherslack Youth Club
Sessional Youth Worker
Approved £2,000.00
Requested £2,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

21912a Windermere Park for All
Play area equipment
Approved £2,000.00
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – Children and Young People
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21723 Sandylands Residents Association
Storage unit
Deferred for more information 
Requesting £6,000 over 3 years or £2,000 per year.
Recommended 
Priority – Children & young people
Charitable objectives – To relieve beneficiaries who are in conditions of need, 
hardship or distress

21742b Kirkby Stephen Junior Football Club
Replacing parameter fence 
Approved £1,000.00
Requested £4,000.00
Recommended £1,000.00
Priority – Children and Young People
Charitable pbjective – To provide a safe environment for beneficiaries 

23 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will take place on 5 March 
2020. 

24 PROPERTY MATTERS

A representative from Savills land agents attended the meeting and presented a 
report on activity in relation to individual properties owned by the Trust:

 Lakeland Horticultural Society

10



 Low Borrans East 
 2 Boot Cottage
 Thickholme Water Supply
 Lily Cottage
 Far Orrest Farm Agricultural Shed
 Residential rent reviews 1 April 2019
 Holehird Tarn

The representative discussed various aspects of management of the Trust’s 
property, seeking guidance from members

The meeting ended at 12:30pm

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4

HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 05 March 2020

From: Corporate Director – Resources

Paper
No

**
CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20

FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2017-18

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report wishes to identify the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the remainder of the 2019-20 financial year. 

1.2 This report also wishes to ensure that an agent is appointed for the 
purposes of administering the grant applications after the current 
agreement with Cumbria Community Foundation which ends on 31.03.20 
and to determine the amount to be made available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the duration of the next agreement.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Members are asked to note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2019-20 financial year. 

3.2 Members are asked to re-appoint Cumbria Community Foundation as 
agent for the administration of the grant applications for the next three 
years if it is willing to do so.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 At the meeting held on 6th March 2017 the amount made available for 
distribution on grants for each year of the current agreement with Cumbria 
Community Foundation was set at £ 40,000 with fees of £ 4,000 (10% of 
grants awarded).

13

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 4

4.2 In 2018-19 the amount distributed on grants was £ 40,000.

4.3 As there were no unallocated amounts for the 2018-19 financial year no 
adjustment to the amounts available for 2019-20 needs to be made.

4.4 The amount available to distribute in 2019-20 is the original £ 40,000 with fees 
of £ 4,000.

4.5 To date £ 31,925 has been distributed on grants leaving a further £ 8,075 
available to be distributed during the 2019-20 financial year. 

4.6 The current agreement with Cumbria Community Foundation ends on 
31.03.20. In order to ensure that there is a continuation of the grant 
applications administration it will be necessary to re-appoint Cumbria 
Community Foundation or to seek an alternative agent. 

4.7 There is at present, and has been since Cumbria Community Foundation was 
appointed to this role, a good and professional working relationship with the 
Trust. The current arrangements work extremely well.

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 To note the amounts available for distribution on grants and fees in the 2019-
20 financial year.  

5.2 To re-appoint Cumbria Community Foundation to act as agent for the 
administration of the grant applications.

5.3 To invite applications from other organisations to act as agent for the 
administration of the grant applications.

5.4 If option 5.2 above is taken to determine the duration of the next agreement 
and to determine the amount to be made available on grants and fees during 
the next agreement.                                                                                                                               

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 These are set out in the report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report at this stage.

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 To note the amounts still available for distribution on grants and fees for the 
2019-20 financial year. 

8.2 To ensure that an agent for the administration of the grant applications is 
appointed.

14



Page 3 of 4

8.3 To ensure that for the duration of the next agreement there is an amount 
agreed to be made available for grants and fees. 

David Routledge
Finance Officer (Childrens Services)
21st February 2020.

APPENDICES

Financial statements for the eleven months ended 29.02.2020

IMPLICATIONS

Electoral Division(s): All within the former County of Westmorland

Executive Decision Yes*  

Key Decision  No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No*

  N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

 No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

  N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

 No*  Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Holehird Trust Joint Committee, 6th March 2017, Minute No. 31

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Finance Team files containing details of grants, allocations and correspondence with 
Cumbria Community Foundation re the agreement.

15



Page 4 of 4

Contact: David Routledge    Tel: 01228 226855
        E-Mail :  david.routledge@cumbria.gov.uk

16



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the eleven months ended 29.02.20

 Note  29.02.20 31.03.19 28.02.19

Incoming Resources

Sale of COIF Units 150,000 0 0

Rents 178,083 210,257 148,351

Insurance Claims 4,850 1,969 1,969

Interest on Balance 0 187 0

Total incoming Resources 332,933 212,413 150,320

Resources Expended

Capital Works & Refurbishment 192,638 0 0

Building & Ground Maintenance 80,057 98,155 67,549

Other Premises Costs 24,419 21,402 21,541

Other  31,016 35,141 29,255

Grants 31,925 40,000 27,458

Fees 3,193 4,000 2,746

Total Resources Expended 363,248 198,698 148,549

Net Incoming / Outgoing( - ) Resources -30,315 13,715 1,771

Other Recognised Gains and Losses

Unrealised Gains / ( - Losses)

on Investments 2 -4,088 88,022 65,146

Net Movement in Funds 6 -34,403 101,737 66,917

Transfer from Capital Reserve 6 245,514 0 0

Balance B/F 6 845,804 744,067 744,067

Balances C/F 6 1,056,915 845,804 810,984

17



 

18



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Balance Sheet as at 29.02.20

Note 29.02.20 31.03.19 28.02.19

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 3 8,392,679 8,200,041 8,200,041

Investments 2 846,831 850,919 828,043

 

9,239,510 9,050,960 9,028,084

Current Assets

Debtors 4 14,398 11,102 5,022

Cash 142,678 176,289 170,425

157,076 187,391 175,447

Liabilities: due within one year 5 0 0 0

Net Current Assets 157,076 187,391 175,447

Net Assets 9,396,586 9,238,351 9,203,531

Represented By:

Funds and Reserves 6

Unrestricted Funds 1,056,915 845,804 810,984

Capital Reserve 0 245,514 245,514

Revaluation Reserve 8,339,671 8,147,033 8,147,033

9,396,586 9,238,351 9,203,531

19



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Notes to the accounts for the eleven  months ended 29.02.20

1 Accounting Policies

These accounts have been prepared using the accruals convention and in accordance 

with applicable accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

on Accounting by Charities.

2 Unrealised Gains on Investments

Valuation at 29.02.20 was 19,580.72 pence per COIF accumulation share.

4,324.82 units were held at this date.

£

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.19 850,919

Valuation of Holding at 29.02.20 846,831

Unrealised Gain / ( - Loss) -4,088

3 Tangible Fixed Assets

£

Valuation at 31.03.19 8,200,041

Additions for year 192,638

Disposals for year 0

Revaluation in year 0

Net Book Value at 29.02.20 8,392,679

4 Debtors 2019/20 2018/19

Rents 14,398 11,102

14,398 11,102

5 Liabilites - due within one year 2019/20 2018/19

General Creditors 0 0

0 0

6 Reserves

Unrestricted Capital Revaluation

Funds Reserve Reserve

Balance at 31.03.19 845,804 245,514 8,147,033

Movement in Year 211,111 -245,514 192,638

Balance at 29.02.20 1,056,915 0 8,339,671

21



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Schedule of Grants paid 2019-20

Organisation Application No Awarded (£) Locality

Long MartonParish Institute 21493B 2,000 Eden

Learning Plus 21500B 2,000 South Lakeland

Blackwell Sailing 21522B 1,665 South Lakeland

Lakes Alive 21515B 1,000 South Lakeland

Natland & Oxenholme Pre School 21556 2,000 South Lakeland

Patterdale King George V Playing Field Assocaiation 21411A 2,000 Eden

South Lakes Action on Climate Change Towards Transition 21692 2,000 South Lakeland

Penrith Cricket Club 21690C 1,500 Eden

The Lighthouse Community Mental Health Hub 21663c 2,500 South Lakeland

Bolton Nursery 21627 540 Eden

Kendal Gymnastics Club 21594 2,000 South Lakeland

The Lakes School Community Partnership 21570 500 South Lakeland

Kirkby Stephen Mountain Rescue Team 21721 1,000 Eden

Eden Sight Support 21921A 2,000 Eden

Kirkby Lonsdale RUFC 21911A 1,000 South Lakeland

St.George's Communtiy Parish Church 21788 720 South Lakeland

South Lakeland Hydrotherapy 21764B 2,000 South Lakeland

Hallgarth Hall Citizens 21773 500 South Lakeland

Witherslack Youth Group 21756 2,000 South Lakeland

Windermere park for All 21912A 2,000 South Lakeland

Kirkby Stephen Football Club 21742B 1,000 Eden

31,925

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 5th March 2020

 
All of the applications are eligible geographically and have been selected on the Trusts 
charitable objectives and priorities – Older People, Disabled People, Children and Youth. 
All projects have been assessed on the Community Foundation’s standard procedure.

The amount available to spend at this meeting is £9,075.00

21723 Sandylands Residents Association
Storage Space for Uniform Share Scheme
Requested £6,000.00
Deferred from the last meeting for more information

21811 Common Space Common Humanity
Liaison Officer 
Requested £3,250.00
Deferred from the last meeting for more information

21979 Penrith Mountain Rescue Team
Water Rescue Equipment
Requested £2,541.73
Recommended £0.00 

21993 Arnside Sailing club
Paddle Boarding Equipment
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £1,500.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide activities to beneficiaries

22033 Friends of Crossthwaite School
Polytunnel
Requested £2,224.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & young people
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

22068 Kendal Community Theatre
Production of The Threepenny Opera
Requested £1,500.00
Recommended £ 1,500.00
Priority – Children & young people
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

22094 Eden Timebank
Insurance costs
Requested £484.00
Recommended £484.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

25

Agenda Item 6



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 5th March 2020

22084 Levens Playing Field
Levens Playing Field Development
Requested £2,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & young people
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

26



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21723

Project cost £6,000.00 Amount requested £6,000.00
Amount 
recommended

Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Sandylands Residents Association
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 1 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

50

Aims of the 
group

The application organisation is a Residents Association concerned primarily with the 
wellbeing of residents in South lakes Housing Association properties. However, in
response to Storm Desmond, the Association voted in 2016 to create a separate Flood
Action Group to cover a wider area, to work to prevent and ameliorate future flooding.
The North East Kendal Flood Action group works on behalf of the urban communities in the 
north east quadrant Kendal, but also together with other Flood Groups, the Cumbria 
Community Flood Partnership, and the National Flood Forum.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

6 No. of approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£10584.00

Project Details
Project title Storage space for Uniform Share scheme
Project detail The grant would pay for storage space to allow for the continuation of our uniform share which 

is fully supported by Morrisons Supermarket who act as a drop off point. Our aim after a 
successful launch on 1st August seen here 
https://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/17818782.parents-given-helping-hand-
uniform-provision-event-
kendal/?fbclid=IwAR1FpQGLxkZlOtLHMps0mhAqMdbjENiMkFK7ty-
FgJcglt3vQklyAn9tymU. Is to create a means to replace or swap uniforms during the end of 
term Holidays at Christmas, Easter and Summer holidays. Plus have a collection of uniforms 
for families moving into the area or new schools

Need The link below shows the need for such services as we have a number of schools all of which 
has a set uniform requirement.
https://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/17818782.parents-given-helping-hand-
uniform-provision-event-
kendal/?fbclid=IwAR1FpQGLxkZlOtLHMps0mhAqMdbjENiMkFK7ty-
FgJcglt3vQklyAn9tymU
As is mention in the report we also offer a free repairs cafe which offers free support in 
repairing items from clothing to electricals.

Disadvantage Like many towns and cities, Kendal has pockets of disadvantaged families and the cost of 
buying new uniforms can be hard even with the County Council Uniforms grants support. We 
aim to reduce this pressure and aim to reuse otherwise useable uniforms which will aid our 
community and towns recycling record.

Benefits The grant would pay for storage space to allow for the continuation of our uniform share which 
is fully supported by Morrisons Supermarket who act as a drop off point. Our aim after a 
successful launch on 1st August seen here:
https://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/17818782.parents-given-helping-hand-
uniform-provision-event-
kendal/?fbclid=IwAR1FpQGLxkZlOtLHMps0mhAqMdbjENiMkFK7ty-
FgJcglt3vQklyAn9tymU. 

This would create a means to replace or swap uniforms during the end of term holidays at 
Christmas, Easter and the Summer holidays. Plus have a collection of uniforms for families 
moving into the area or new schools throughout the year with easy access and ease what can be 27



a large expense.
No of beneficiaries 28000 No of volunteers 15

Expenditure
Staff costs: £0.00
We operate on a completely voluntary basis the cost is 
for a local storage unit.

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £6,000.00
£2000 per year to help cover storage unit cost over a 
three-year period otherwise £2000 per year.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00 0

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received No

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Community Interest Company offering support and access to free and low costs events and 
activities in the Sandylands area of Kendal. They also run a free food share and free repairs 
cafe throughout the year.
They started this project last year and it has been successful, the clothes up to now have been 
stored in a volunteer’s home as with many of these kinds of projects. They would now like to 
rent a storage unit in Kendal to store the clothes.  They have tried to find space 

Replacing school uniforms can be expensive, the Department of Education estimates it costs 
around £230 a year. Additional to this is PE kit which can cost from £70 to £140. The 
Children's Society in 2018 put the total cost of uniform at £256 per primary school child and 
£338 per secondary school pupil.

This is a worthwhile project and has been taken up by quite a few schools, charity shops, 
individuals and groups.
In Penrith the Salvation Army collect and then give items out for free and Sedbergh Zero 
Waste volunteers collect wash and distribute school uniform items that are in good condition. 
Items available are listed on their web site and stored by volunteers or within community 
spaces.

This application is for the cost of renting a local storage unit to store the items of clothing.  
They are requesting £2,000 per year and will continue to apply for grants to pay for the unit 
annually.
A good project but being done by others much cheaper. Could the panel suggest any space that 
this group could use?

January 2020 this application was deferred to the March meeting.
The members felt that the price of the storage unit seems expensive and wished to know if 
there were alternative options available for the organisation?

Applicant responded: - I disagree, storage isn’t that expensive when you consider last year, 
we had donated a lot of uniform and helped more than 100 families. And when you consider 
the cost of a single blazer for family was £40 at time of last purchase that’s £2000 for only 50 
blazers in a town of more twenty-eight thousand not including surrounding areas.
Unfortunately, community spaces aren’t available here in Kendal.
They would be happy with a contribution if the full amount could not be awarded.

28



Deferred Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21811

Project cost £5,240.00 Amount requested £3,250.00
Amount 
recommended

£0.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Common Space Common Humanity
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

151

Aims of the 
group

Common space has been providing support and friendship to refugee families in South 
Lakeland since February 2018, bridging the gap between the support provided by Cumbria 
County Council and other agencies and the communities in which the families now live.
We aim to work with rather than for refugees and communities. Our approach focuses on a 
principal of neighbourliness: offering networks of 'familiar strangers' to newly arrived and 
isolated or excluded people who have been displaced by war, violent conflict or persecution.
This philosophy centres on the idea of positive and good neighbouring; absolutely retaining the 
autonomy of the individual yet, in the event of an emergency or event, bringing positive 
outcomes through attitudes and behaviours of support, friendship or practical assistance, in 
whatever form that must take.
Our objective is to see refugee individuals and families able to participate in local space in the 
same way as any other in our communities. Through providing a welcome, building 
relationships, one-to-one mentoring, social events and activities, advocacy and the supporting 
of statutory services we aim to improve confidence, knowledge, and English language, 
facilitate independence and inclusion in the local community, providing connections and 
working to evolve new and independent social networks.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Liaison Officer
Project detail The sustainability of our work with families, and the efficacy and learning culture of our 

approach requires the development of our model. Our activities to date have been managed and 
delivered solely by volunteers, providing 40+ volunteer hours each week. In order that we meet 
our aims and objectives, to work with, rather than for refugees and communities, we believe 
that we must better engage with our local refugee population and better listen and support our 
volunteer mentors. To make this possible we are looking to introduce two small salaried roles.
- A Liaison Officer, with lived experience of displacement and dual-language (Arabic and 
English) will help to facilitate improved communication and understanding between refugee 
individuals and families and the rest of our network; supporting us to take a highly reflective 
approach to our activities and contacts, ensuring that there is a strong experiential and cultural 
voice within the governance of our group, and helping us to produce written materials of 
benefit to existing and new arrivals.
- An Administrator, to ensure improved record keeping and communications within and out 
with our network, as well as to support the planning and coordinating of activities, including 
training and regular meetings. This will relieve pressure on existing volunteers and ensure that 
our coordinator and other members of our committee can focus more specifically on providing 
guidance and support to volunteers and steering our approach and activities in line with our 
aims and objectives.

Need We have taken an evolutionary ground-up approach to our activities, consulting widely with 
the existing community prior to the arrival of resettlement families, consulting with local 
services to establish their scope, with existing organisations working with refugees and asylum 
seekers in the region and other parts of the UK, with a small number of recently displaced 
individuals, and with academics working in the fields of migration and displacement. Through 

29



this approach we have built a network of partners and members, increased our knowledge and 
capacity to work with the local community and existing services, and shaped our early and 
ongoing work.
Our approach with refugee individuals and families has also been evolutionary. Building on 
our research and planning with the wider community, we took a responsive approach to 
working with ten individuals in 2018 quickly recognising that no individual was in need of the 
same support as another and finding we needed to adapt and adopt different approaches as we 
went. From this was born our mentor model which, taking our guiding principles and set within 
certain boundaries, is led by the individuals and families with which we work, and adapts 
accordingly to presenting needs at any given time. No individual or family is obligated to meet 
nor engage in this or in our other activities.
Prior to the arrival of new families, at the beginning of 2019, we carried out reflective feedback 
meetings, with two families, in which we sought to gain their views on their arrival 
experiences, their experiences with our group, what they felt worked or was helpful, and what 
was not and what was missing. In addition, we asked for their views on what we should 
prioritise for new arrivals.
We frequently receive positive feedback from statutory services on our approach.

Disadvantage The impacts of conflict and displacement are widely recognised, this includes in resettlement 
environments where the interplay of trauma, violence, loss of family, friends, home and agency 
can have significant psychosocial consequences and place profound barriers on longer-term 
adjustment (UNICEF, 2004; Patel et al. 2008).
In addition, those accessing our services are from ethnic, cultural, and religious backgrounds of 
a significant minority in the area presenting additional challenges and have limited or no 
English, radically inhibiting their ability to live their lives independently in this country. This 
has repercussions on access to employment, on engaging in opportunities for their children and 
in their children's education, as well as in day-to-day interactions and social connections, 
presenting significant impacts on self-esteem and identity.
This group also typically presents high levels of stress and anxiety, disproportionately high 
health needs and health anxiety, unpredictable and inconsistent behaviour, depression and 
issues relating to parenting.
Language and culture present barriers in effectively accessing services, understanding UK 
systems, practicing and retaining cultural heritage and accessing new social and community 
networks. Local services in south Cumbria have limited experience or knowledge in 
responding to, or working with, diverse ethnic minorities, particularly minority groups from the 
Middle East, African countries and people who have experienced war and violent conflict. 
While there is designated local authority support for resettlement families many of the nuances 
of accessing services, the making of social connections and the inclusion in the fabric of 
communities remain unmet. In addition, this support tails off and comes to an end after a year, 
meaning the need for positive local relationships and neighbourly connections is ever more 
essential.

Benefits The culture and environment in which people live has a profound impact on the capabilities 
they have to access provision and opportunities in that context. For forced migrants, the shift in 
culture and environment is often huge and coupled with the impact of their experience of 
displacement, they face wide-reaching challenges in adapting to new environments. In 
addition, the success of towns and cities to welcome and include migrants into communities 
has repercussions for us all and in a climate of hostile and heightened anti-migrant attitudes 
and control, the role of civil society is crucial.
Our principal objective is to have an immediate and lasting impact on the way in which people 
who have experienced forced displacement experience their new community, mitigating, where 
we can, some of these challenges in adapting. We see this as requiring a responsive, flexible 
and individually centred approach. This is the approach delivered by volunteers but guided, 
managed and supported by our coordinator and committee.
Our development approach is focussed on securing the sustainability of our offer and achieving 
the following outcomes:
1) To create a peer liaison role to ensure the voice of refugee individuals and families is central 
to what we do. 
2) To create a dedicated administrator who will improve the efficiency and organisation of our 
work. 
3) In turn, both roles will help to improve the consistency and efficacy of our work:
- enabling volunteers to focus on providing responsive and reflective support, and the 
coordinator and committee, to better support volunteer mentors to manage the impacts of their 
complex and challenging role. And for refugee individuals and families, continue to reduce 30



isolation and stress, and improve confidence, language, wellbeing and community networks.
Measure Part of the funding stream we are seeking is to support the employment of a primary liaison 

officer, a person with lived experience of displacement who is sufficiently established in a UK 
context to provide a bridging relationship between those we work with and our group. We see 
this role, that will include translation, and continual reflective practice around the needs and 
experiences of individuals and families, as a form of action-research, ensuring that we are 
continually considering the effectiveness of our way of working and that we work from a place 
that is with the people we aim to support rather than for them.
In addition, we keep (and aim through the establishment of these paid roles, to improve) a 
record and summary of our mentor contacts with individuals and families and use these 
periodically to discuss practices, challenges encountered and changes.
We currently provide a bi-annual report to CVS as part of their role in working between groups 
in the community and the local authority.
We would be very happy to provide additional reports to any funding bodies supporting our 
work.

After funding 
ends

Each individual we work with has diverse and entirely subjective needs. As such, putting a 
timeframe on our work is something we have chosen not to do. Our expectation however is that 
the demand for our service from individuals will begin to reduce during their second year in the 
UK or of working with our, or a similar service. For example, while an individual may no 
longer need weekly support or friendship - they may have been able to gain part time 
employment, offering significant benefits in terms of identity - they may still require 
significant support. They will likely still have limited written English, be unable to translate 
contractual documents, or manage telephone or medical appointments. They may now in fact 
have greater drive to establish themselves locally but still struggle with how to put that into 
action, they may be reflecting on their own or a family member’s mental health or high-stress 
and anxiety but need support to consider the different opportunities available to them and to 
access that service or an activity.
In addition, we are aware that there is a local authority commitment to house further 
resettlement families in our area but that the numbers and timing of new arrivals is uncertain. 
Should more families move into our area, we would be seeking further funding from statutory 
and other sources, beyond this current bid period, to ensure the offer of two-years of support is 
available to all newly arrived refugee individuals or families?

No of beneficiaries 18 No of volunteers 25

Expenditure
Staff costs: £3,120.00
Liaison Officer: 104 hours (2 hours per week for 1 year) 
at £15 per hour = £1,560  
Administrator: 208 hours (4 hours per week for 1 year) at 
£15 per hour = £3,120

Operational costs: £130.00
Travelling expenses for paid staff (estimated) £260

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£1,690.00 Since inception: 2017 coffee morning £12; 2018 £416 donations + 
£1200 grant (YWCA); 2019 Coffee morning £380 + music event 
£75 + £2000 grant (Cumbria County Council) of which £1690 is 
allocated specifically to this project

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Cumbria County Council Community Grants (£300) and local 
fundraising: office and overhead costs and staff travel costs.

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Constituted group set up in 2018 to support refugees in South Lakeland.
Previously volunteer ran but would now like to employ 2 part time members of staff, job 
descriptions supplied.
Their accounts ending August 2019 show an income of £2,264.20 and expenditure of £835.23 
with a carryover of £1,872.27.
The income is from donations and £1,200 of this is ring-fenced for children’s activities. 
Last year they worked with 10 people and this next year they would like to benefit 18 people.
I do have concerns about how they will be able to continue to fund 2 staff posts when they do 
not have a means of income other than donations and a little fund raising themselves.

Because of the number of applications to the fund and the fact that we would not be able to 
31



support the full amount requested from this fund. I will have to recommend reject.
Update on deferred application

Members wished to know if there were any alternative funding streams 
the group could try. 
In response to their questions:
We have had strong indications that Cumbria County Council will continue with the 
£2,000 grant for at least a further year and very likely beyond. We have actively sought 
the support of CVS and their support in identifying appropriate funding sources. We 
would now prioritise moving forward with that as well as with an application to the 
National Lottery Awards for All fund which was a previous suggestion from CVS.  

In terms of thinking about managing the funds we do have, or manage to get, we would 
prioritise the role of liaison officer over the administrator position and if funding allows, 
seek to recruit an administrator on a reduced number of hours (2 rather than 4 per week) 
and work on recruiting more volunteers to our group who may take on some of the tasks 
originally anticipated to be completed by that role.

In the longer term, we do believe the work we do is of strong value not just to refugee 
families but to the wider community and public services - as such we would hope that in 
time some of our activities would be incorporated into the commissioning streams of the 
local authority and become standard practice for resettlement teams and other frontline 
services such as GP practices. We have been taking small steps to encouraging this.

32



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21979

Project cost £2,541.73 Amount requested £2,541.73
Amount 
recommended

£0.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Penrith Mountain Rescue Team
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

39

Aims of the 
group

To assist the emergency services in rescuing and providing aid to those lost or in danger both 
in mountainous areas and across the wider countryside. We specialise in search and rescue 
operations, including rescues at height.  We maintain a fleet of vehicles, including off-road 
capability to allow us to reach remote areas.  We also maintain a strong team of fully qualified 
Swiftwater Rescue Technicians, able to carry out rescue operations in both moving water and 
urban flood situations. Many in the team are also qualified in Casualty Care.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

5 No. of approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£1000.00

Project Details
Project title Water Rescue Equipment
Project detail We are expecting a further six team members to become qualified as Swiftwater Rescue 

Technicians (SRTs) around late February. Each one of these will need to be provided with full 
personal equipment, most of which is considered essential PPE. Whilst we have stocks of some 
items (such as dry suits and personal floatation devices) we will need to procure the majority of 
this equipment prior to the training and assessment. We also need to procure some large group 
casualty shelters, some emergency foil casualty blankets and caps/thick neoprene gloves for 
winter use (for all SRTs within the team).

Need We have received messages of thanks from individuals on many occasions, as well as thanks 
and commendations from the Police and local politicians. Whilst the full-time emergency 
services maintain a water rescue capability (mainly Cumbria Fire & Rescue and the 
Coastguard), they are hard-pressed in many situations and know that they can rely on Penrith 
Mountain Rescue Team to provide a significant additional service, to the same high standards 
of training, equipment and overall safety.

Disadvantage Unfortunately, it is not uncommon for people to get into difficulties in rivers and lakes, often 
whilst kayaking or walking close to water bodies.  For people in such situations, our 
intervention can mean the difference between survival or drowning. Meanwhile, flooding 
increasingly impacts on a considerable number of people right across our region, as can be seen 
from occasions such as Storm Desmond, where the team was central to efforts to rescue a great 
many people from flooded houses in Carlisle, Eamont Bridge and other areas. Our ability to 
rescue people from their flooded homes, often with pets and most cherished possessions, seems 
to make a very real difference, even if they are later faced with the issues around finding 
accommodation and repairing their houses.

Benefits The bulk of the funding will allow us to fully equip 6 additional SRTs, bringing our team 
strength up to approximately 20 in total. This allows us to ensure a strong and capable response 
for water rescue incidents across northeast Cumbria and more widely, in support of other 
rescue teams and Cumbria Fire & Rescue. The additional gear will better protect all SRTs 
within the team, as well as providing better care for casualties, particularly those that are in 
danger of becoming hypothermic.

Measure The initial benefits are pretty straightforward:  A larger, stronger and more capable water 
rescue capability within the team, with all qualified members suitably equipped and thus able 
to operate safely in a wide range of environments.  The secondary benefits, being to those we 
rescue or otherwise assist, are perhaps harder to quantify, but will become recognised during 
and after particular incidents, we expect.33



After funding 
ends

We have an ongoing programme of equipment monitoring and inspection; some of this 
specialist equipment has a limited lifespan and must be periodically replaced. Meanwhile, as 
new equipment becomes available or new techniques are developed, we will look to ensure that 
we remain in line with all recognised standards. To this end, we will periodically submit new 
bids for funding, so as to allow us to make such necessary purchases.

No of beneficiaries 20 No of volunteers 15

Expenditure
Other costs: £22.95
Delivery charges for R3 SAR Gear, Palm and Medtree.  
All others either free delivery confirmed or expected.

Capital costs: £2,518.78
'Water rescue equipment 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00 Considerable funds raised from various sources, but not for this 
project

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Penrith MRT is a registered charity and is a member of the Lake District Search and Mountain 
Rescue Association LDSAMRA. 
 
Within the LDSAMRA area, there are ten mountain rescue teams as well as two specialist 
teams (Cumbria Ore Mines Unit - COMRU and the Lake District Search and Rescue Dog 
Association LDMRSDA).
 
Penrith MRT covers the largest geographic area; the area stretches from the Scottish Border to 
the Northumberland Border. They work alongside neighbouring Mountain Rescue teams, 
particularly Patterdale and Kirkby Stephen.
 
The Team is entirely funded by donations and all members are unpaid volunteers and respond 
to over 50 callouts per year. 
Accounts dated 2018 show an income of £71,809 and expenditure of £42,070 They had 
£355,911.93 in their bank account at the end of their financial year. 

Their accounts show a healthy financial reserve.  They want to hold reserves to cover all 
running costs for approximately three years.
They say that some of their financial reserves are  ring-fenced to support plans to build a new 
base  It is likely that the project will cost in the region of £1m overall, including purchase or 
lease of land, construction and all associated fees. This project has not started yet.
Because of the wide geographical area of benefit and it is not just Westmorland which this fund 
supports and their healthy bank balance, recommend reject.

34



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21993

Project cost £8,011.20 Amount requested £5,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Arnside Sailing Club
Post Town CARNFORTH District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

156

Aims of the 
group

The Club's objective is to promote sailing and other water sports at Arnside. Since 2014 we 
have increased our membership by 265% through the introduction of child and adult training 
schemes and provision of club boats. We were RYA North West Sailing Club of the Year in 
2019. We are a community club open to anyone. We aim to keep membership fees low so that 
cost is not a barrier to people sailing. In 2019 52 children took part in cadet sessions at Arnside 
at least once. Over half our membership is made up of families with children.

Our activities are
a) Run a sailing programme at Arnside with safety boat cover 
b) Run a children's sailing programme Arnside 
sailing Club
c) Run sailing courses at Killington near Sedbergh
d) Provide boat storage 
e) Own and maintain Severn, a yacht built in Arnside in 1912.

In 2020 we want to extend our offer to include paddle boarding and canoeing. Both are 
growing sports.

Our clubhouse is run as a community music and social venue. 75% of our members are from 
Arnside and surrounding villages.

The club is volunteer run with members working together for the good of the club and village 
community.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

6 No. of approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£10750.00

Project Details
Project title Paddle boards
Project detail It is proposed to buy 9 stand up paddle boards, so that we can offer paddle boarding, as a low 

tide activity principally for families and children, when the water is not deep enough to sail. At 
low tide the water at Arnside is very shallow creating ideal conditions to learn paddle boarding. 

Seven of the paddle boards would come with sails so that they could be used as a steppingstone 
to take up sailing or teaching windsurfing.

We would employ a qualified freelance instructor to run half and whole day beginner paddle 
boarding courses for us.   There would be a small charge (between £10 and £15 per half day) to 
go on the courses to cover instructor costs and make the scheme sustainable in the long term

In the first year we plan to run 5 one day beginner children's courses and 2 half day adult 
courses aimed at parents enabling us to train 30 children and 12 adults. We will also run 3 
children's start to racecourses and 2 windsurfing taster sessions.  

For people who learnt we would run family paddle boarding sessions led by volunteers. 
35



Training adults, including parents should provide us with a pool of volunteers who could help 
us supervise family and children's paddle boarding sessions in the future.

Need We have received a lot of requests from club families to offer paddle boarding. It is something 
that we can run at Arnside on low tide days when the water is very shallower. Seeing paddle 
boarding take place in the estuary at Arnside and in the Lake District is now a regular 
occurrence.

Stand up paddle boarding is the fastest growing water-sports in the world. In the UK an 
estimated 900,000 people paddle boarded in summer 2019. It is relatively easy to take up and is 
a steppingstone to taking up other water-sports such as sailing.

Several Sailing Clubs have introduced paddle boarding with great success. Cransley near 
Kettering have attracted 50 new people by offering paddle boarding, whilst Chelmarsh in 
Shropshire have delivered paddle boarding courses to more than 200 people and recruited 30 
new members., some of whom went on take up sailing.

Glossop Sailing Club introduced Stand Up Paddle Boarding in 2018. They ran introductory 
courses for 60 novices promoted via social media, which generated huge local interest from 
women, parents of juniors, and partners of existing dinghy sailors and windsurfers. In 2019 
they added Yoga Stand Up Paddle boarding and taster sessions for retirees, all of which could 
be potentially offered at Arnside.

With a fitting for a mast, there are paddle board available that can also be using for 
windsurfing. With a wide estuary that it is also quite shallow, Arnside would offer ideal 
conditions for windsurfing. Whilst not growing as fast as paddle boarding, windsurfing is 
becoming more popular in the UK. It is an Olympic sport. It was taught in Arnside in 1980s by 
an outdoor training company.  It therefore seems wise to buy paddle boards with sails that 
could also be used for windsurfing.

Disadvantage Some people in our area have a low income, whilst others are struggling with mortgages, the 
cost of setting up home and bringing up children. At least four families in our club are single 
parent families. 

We aim to keep membership fees low, so that cost is not a barrier to people to taking up water 
sports. With a membership fee of just £65 a year for a family in 2019, we are the cheapest 
sailing club in Cumbria to join. It costs more to hire a boat for a day at some centres. Providing 
equipment enables people who cannot afford their own to take up water sports.

In 2019 of the 52 children who sailed with us at Arnside, three were coloured (6%), four were 
foster children (8%), two used hearing aids (4%) and one had sight difficulties (2%). 

In a rural village such as Arnside people have to travel to take part in many activities. Parents 
have to spend a considerable amount of time ferrying children to leisure activities. Though 
train services from Arnside to Lancaster and Barrow are good, there are no bus services to 
Milnthorpe and Kendal at weekends making harder for people without a car including older 
teenagers to get out of the village creating social isolation. Water-sports is something that 
people can do in the village without having to travel.

Benefits For adults and children taking part, paddle boarding would offer a fun way of exercising with 
friends and family and enjoying Arnside's natural environment. It helps improve balance, 
reduces stress by taking your mind off other things, exercises your whole body, offers a low 
impact work up, boosts cardiovascular health and helps with weight lost. Learning paddle 
boarding offers a sense of achievement boosting confidence. Done with friends, it is a social 
activity improving mental health. By offering courses we would be giving people a safe way to 
learn.

For the club it is a way of attracting new members, who may go onto take up sailing. It also 
means that we would be offering our members better value for money by providing an activity 
which they could do when conditions are unsuitable for sailing due to the tide being out or no 
wind. Paddle boarding is a good way of introducing people to water-sports as it is relatively 
easy to learn.

For the local tourism industry, it would be introducing a new water-sport to the area. We would 
36



expect paddle boarding to be of interest to people including families with children staying at 
caravan sites in the area.

Measure We would measure the sucess of the project by
a) Number of children going on our paddle boarding courses
b) Number of adults going on our paddle boarding courses
c) Number of adults and children paddle boarding on a regular basis having completed a paddle 
board course
d) Number of adults and children taking up windsurfing.

After funding 
ends

In future years, we envisage that we will continue to offer paddle boarding courses to children 
and adults wishing to learn and run family paddle boarding sessions for children and adults 
who had already learnt. Members including families would also be free to take out paddle 
boards at other times for example on a sunny day. We would look to offering paddle boarding 
to outside groups, such as local youth clubs or running sessions for people such as retirees or 
women

We would encourage a volunteer or group of volunteers to come forward as paddleboard 
coordinators. There may be opportunities for older teenagers to help run and teach sessions.

Having paddle boards that could also be used for windsurfing would enable us to offer a fourth 
water-sport at Arnside as well as paddle boarding, canoeing and sailing. We anticipate that a 
wind surfing group would emerge in the club and that from 2021 we would offer windsurfing 
courses as well as taster days. 

Offering paddle boarding at high tide and paddle board touring are other options.  At low tide it 
would be possible to make quite long voyages on paddle boards, for example to Grange-over-
Sands. 

We would hope to make the scheme sustainable in the medium term so we could afford 
replacement or additional paddleboards by charging for courses and recruiting new members

No of beneficiaries 250 No of volunteers 20

Expenditure
Staff costs: £0.00
8.5 days x £120 cost of an instructor per day = £1020

We would recoup this cost for charging for the courses. 
To breakeven we would need to charge around £15 for a 
day's course on the assumption that not all places on the 
course will be taken. The maximum student: instructor 
ratio is 1 to 6.

Volunteer costs: £0.00
2 volunteers helping with training courses x £70 per day 
x 8.5 = £1190

2 volunteers running paddle boarding 2-hour sessions at 
£10 per hour x 10 = £400
Operational costs: £0.00
£30 insurance per paddleboard x 12 = £360
£150 contribution to club overheads
 3 Stand Up Paddle boards 10' 8" long £703.20 each       
£2109..60 
3 Small paddle board sails at £239.20 each                          
£717.60 
4 Medium paddle board sails at £271.20 each                        
£1084.80 
Total                                                                                 
£8011.20

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £0.00
Administration of paddle boarding courses by volunteers 
2 hours per day's course x 8.5 at £10 per hour = £170
Arranging purchase, delivery and insurance
12 hours x £10 = £120

Capital costs: £5,000.00
We are bidding for £5000 towards the £8000 cost of 
buying 9 stand up paddle boards and 7 stand up board 
paddle board sails. 

The break down is below
3 Stand Up Paddle boards 9' 8" long £671.20 each                    
£2013.60 
3 Stand Up Paddle boards 10'4" long £695.20 each         
£2085.60 
Publicity costs: £0.00
Volunteer time
Preparing press releases 7 hours x £20 = £140
Updating web and facebook sites 4 hours x £20 = £80
Including in Clubs Newsletters 2 hours x £20 = £40
Getting programme mentioned in other organisation's 
newsletters and website 4 hours x £20 = £80
Designing a poster 2 hours x £20 = £40
Putting up posters 4 hours x £10 = £40
Contacting schools, youth groups 3 hours x £20 = £60

Income
37



Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£3,250.00 Arnside-Silverdale AONB Grant Fund £2500, Barnes Trust 
(Arnside) £750,

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

The organisation’s main aim is to promote sailing at Arnside. Currently the membership stands 
at 138 and has seen a large increase in membership/participation since 2014 through the 
introduction of child and adult training schemes. The group’s activities include sailing 
programmes, four-day courses and provision of boats/storage. The group also own and 
maintain the Servern – a yacht built in Arnside in 1912. The group also run social events in the 
clubhouse, with the vast majority of members from the Arnside area. 

The accounts ending October 2018 show an income of £8,802 and expenditure of £15,990. 
They had enough funding to cover the loss as this was due to purchasing equipment.

Requesting £5000 towards the £8000 cost of buying 9 stand up paddle boards and 7 stand up 
board paddle board sails. 

CCF recently funded this group to help to purchase a catamaran.
As they keep their membership fees low to encourage low income families to take part, 
recommend a contribution if funds allow.
Priority - children & young people
Charitable objectives - to provide the relevant good to beneficiaries

38



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 22033a

Project cost £2,224.25 Amount requested £2,224.25
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Friends of Crosthwaite School
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 2 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

160

Aims of the group Friends of Crosthwaite School (FrOCS) works closely with the school, families and the local 
community - as well as the wider South Lakeland Area - to run multiple fundraising events 
(always social, family-friendly) for the children of Crosthwaite C.E. Primary School, and also in 
support of other organisations in the local area, supporting multiple  annual fundraising 
events for other charitable organisations. As part of all fundraising FrOCS works hard to 
maintain, enhance and expand strong, effective and purposeful relationships between 
parents, families, staff, children and all other stakeholders in the area.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

1 No. of approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Polytunnel
Project detail The school which we support is a registered Farm school, which works hard to provide 

multiple opportunities for all children within school, creating real life opportunities to work 
outdoors, with plants, animals and insects and build resilience and character whilst doing this. 
We are keen to support their future plans through the provision of a Polytunnel, for which 
capital funding is required to fund the actual polytunnel. Groundworks and instillation will be 
done by school staff and volunteers from Frocs, some of whom have access to the required 
equipment through their businesses (Landscaping, Building, Farming etc) - so this will save 
money on the project start-up costs.

Need School - specifically the School Council - has led on surveys within school, utilising online 
surveys the children have produced to record interest in such a project. As the school has 
been focusing on climate change - with lessons taught at a level of detail appropriate for the 
age group - three questions only (Yes, no, don't know multiple choice replies) were asked: 1. 
Would you like to do more outdoor learning? 2. Do you feel it is important that we live a 
healthy lifestyle and exercise where possible? 3. Would you be interested in growing more 
fruit and vegetables as part of a healthy diet and helping to protect our local, and the wider, 
environment. Answers to the questions as a percentage (of 87 responses) answering yes were 
as follows: Q1: 100% Q2: 97.7% Q3: 95.4% A further comments box, inviting further 
comments and ideas had multiple suggestions related to growing our own produce, utilising 
polytunnels / green houses and the importance of doing so to reduce the carbon footprint of 
the food we eat and help our environment. Further discussions with parents and the local 
community (through attendance at community events) was led by staff who received 
complete support for the project, as well as offers of help and expressions of interest in using 
the produce.

Disadvantage The school and all its stakeholders, including members of the local community are all living 
and working, or attending school, in a rural area. The associated positives to growing up in 
such a lovely area are often outweighed by the negative aspects brought on by the social 
isolation and rural deprivation stakeholders - specifically families and young children - face. 
The school is a vital hub of the community at all times of the school year, providing multiple 

39



resources that families can use (supporting the school at the same time) and we know that 
this will be another one.

Benefits As a rural, farming community, with the school as the hub of the community and being used 
by children from a very wide catchment area, all of which is rural, we are keen to support the 
school in developing an inspiring outdoor facility which provides multiple learning 
opportunities as well as educating children, families and the local community on the benefits 
of producing your own food to support a healthy lifestyle, the benefits of working hard to do 
so - so exercise - and also how this all impacts positively on reducing the carbon footprint of 
the food we eat, thus being beneficial to the environment. By supporting the school in doing 
this with all children - hence the size of the Polytunnel required - we feel they will learn from 
a young age of the importance of things such as this and the need to promote and live a 
healthy lifestyle in multiple ways. The school is, in all ways, inclusive and our organisation is 
keen to support this as well, recognising the wider positives that the project will bring as 
families, covering multiple generations, and the local communities are invited to become 
involved in growing and utilising the products.

Measure The school is a Google Reference school, so all children have their own accounts, and also 
utilises various features of the Google Education Suite. Having being involved in discussions 
with the school leadership team we have agreed that the School Council will produce online 
surveys that all children, families and members of the local community can use to provide 
evaluation at all ages / levels on the success of the project and its impact(s) as well as 
comments and ideas on how the project can be improved in the future. School leadership will 
also have ongoing discussions with the catering team to ensure the produce being grown is 
used, with the aim of all year-round production of fruit and vegetables to be grown and used.

After funding ends We are confident from discussions with the school that this is not a short term project but 
something that is being put in place to support annual planting and growing by the children 
and families etc, with replacement of coverings the only anticipated costs (approximately 
every 5 years) and potential for growth in the future on adjoining land. Informal discussions 
with local community members has also demonstrated a real interest in the project not only 
as outlined above but also various individuals (families associated to school and many local 
community members) keen to both support it on a regular basis, ongoing development but 
also interested in the possibility of having their own dedicated area within the polytunnel or 
any others as available if the project does expand in terms of size. In addition to the above, 
costs are based on multiple quotes received as we are keen to ensure the school gets the best 
quality and value for money equipment to support the long term aims of the project.

No of beneficiaries 400 No of volunteers 15

Expenditure

Capital costs: £2,224.25
Self-build Polytunnel (16 x 20 feet) - aluminium frame 
and base rails: £563.65
Cross-bracing bars: £80.14
Door frames: £201.01
Polythene cover: £139.93
Doors: £264.73
Side ventilation screens: £205.42
Raised beds (3.5 x 30 feet) x 2: £770.67

Income
Amount of funding 
raised so far

£0.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment

40



Assessor’s 
comments 

This Registered charity was set up by volunteers to support Crosthwaite Primary School near 
Kendal. They have held a number of fundraising events and supplied the school with 
equipment such as computers and headphones and also contribute to the school minibus.  
The minibus is also rented out to the community. 
Crossthwaite school was first mentioned as a school in 1626 and has grown since then. Their 
ofsted report was outstanding in all areas.
The school own their own flock of sheep, have Alpacas and poultry.  They sell the meat and 
eggs and with the poly tunnel they hope to grow vegetables and do the same. 
They have a Bee keeping club which sells honey to support the activity. 
the projects are overseen by the chair of the PTA who is a farmer and point of contact for 
DEFRA.  Parents and their children are rostered to feed and look after the animals during 
weekends and school holidays.
Latest accounts how an income of £18,572 and expenditure of £18,538.

Interesting project that provides outside learning for the 100 children who attend the school 
and their siblings.
Recommend a contribution
Priority children and young people
Charitable objectives - to provide the activities for beneficiaries

41



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 22068a

Project cost £7,010.00 Amount requested £1,500.00
Amount 
recommended

Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Kendal Community Theatre
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

77

Aims of the 
group

Kendal Community Theatre seeks to deliver innovative theatrical productions which are 
inclusive, encouraging participation from all members of the community regardless of gender, 
age, disability, disadvantage or ethnicity. Participation is open to any interested individual or 
group with no entry requirements, auditions or tests whatsoever. It welcomes and encourages 
participation by people at disadvantage because of employment, health or social status. It seeks 
to bring innovative drama to Kendal. Major productions have been “A Passion for Kendal” in 
2012 and 2015, “Lady Anne Clifford, a woman cast out” in 2013 and "Oh What a Lovely 
War" in 2014. Kendal Yarns Festival of
New Plays in 2016 featured 58 plays by over a hundred local writers. In 2017 the Kendal 
Yarns legacy featured six yarns in Best of the Fest, at Staveley Roundhouse in April, 3 BBC 
Radio Cumbria broadcasts of Kendal Yarns Plays in April and culminating 2017 with a tour of 
plays to local care and residential homes.  More recent activities included in the Strong 
Women Street Theatre and Trouble With Women Festival of plays at Castle Street Centre 
Community Centre and Vampire Plays at Kendal Museum. It works in partnership with South 
Lakes Housing.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

9 No. of approved 
grants

6 Total Amount 
Awarded

£7750.00

Project Details
Project title Production of The Threepenny Opera
Project detail It will be used to support the production of the Threepenny Opera in October 2020. There will 

be four performances. It will be a large production with around twenty actors, singers and 
musicians. In line with our policy of inclusivity, anyone who would like to participate can do 
so. There will be casting workshops, but no auditions.  Professional theatre and musical 
directors will run these to develop skills and produce our usual high standard of performance.

Need We already have a number of people who have indicated their wish to be involved in this 
production. Planning meetings are taking place. Numbers of participants and audience figures 
from previous productions show that the work of Kendal Community Theatre is valued by 
local people - both individuals and organisations.
The public launch will take place on February 27th.

Disadvantage Kendal Community Theatre works with a wide group of individuals. They bring with them a 
range of skills and abilities. We have blind actors, people with learning difficulties and some 
participants with physical disabilities, including people who use mobility aids. They work 
alongside able-bodied actors and crew. This integration benefits all participants. For some 
people this is the first time that they have been able to take part in events such as this. They, 
and sometimes their careers, report that participation has enabled them to broaden their 
horizons - going on to do other things. The production will support the personal growth and 
well-being of all those who take part.

Benefits ➢ Kendal Community Theatre remains the only amateur/community company in Kendal, so 
large-scale popular productions contribute to the cultural life of the town.
➢ Actors and singers will develop new skills in acting and music in ‘Brechtian’ theatre 
through working with professional Directors.
➢ People who may not normally feel able to take part in theatre or with no experience are 

43



welcome and will develop their own skills.
➢ Those choosing not to act will develop skills in stage management and other backstage 
roles.

Measure As in previous years we will measure progress against the objectives set out above during the 
production process and at the end. We will also seek feedback from participants and audiences. 
This will be complemented by statistical data covering audience numbers and finance.

After funding 
ends

The Threepenny Opera will be Kendal Community Theatre’s major production for 2020. Plans 
are already being developed for productions in 2021 and 2022. Like this year’s production they 
will be open to all who wish to participate in whatever way they can.

No of beneficiaries 290 No of volunteers 40

Expenditure
Staff costs: £0.00
Professional musician to direct musical aspects and train 
singers. £1000

Volunteer costs: £0.00
Travel, out of pocket expenses. Experience suggests this 
will be sufficient

Operational costs: £0.00
Van hire £500
Ticketing £120
Staging hire £350
Performing rights License £500

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £1,500.00
Rehearsal space £720 (60hrs @ £12/hr)
Performance Venue Hire £720 (4 performances @ £180)
Insurance £250

Capital costs: £0.00
Costumes, sets and props £1000

Publicity costs: £0.00
Advertising and other media £350
Graphic design £500
Programmers £200

Other costs: £0.00
Contingency, 10% £700

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£1,250.00 £750 Kendal Town Council; £500 Kendal Community Theatre

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes CCC Local Area Fund £500; C&J Clark £500; Westmorland Arts 
Trust £1000 We would also expect ticket sales to raise £2400 (4 
performances, 100 seats per performance, ticket price £10 - 60% 
capacity)

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered charity 1156585 who started in July 2011 and have provided performances over the 
years. 
They plan to provide 4 performances in October 2020 
Application for cost of venue hire, insurance and rehearsal space.

The applicant specifically requested that this application went to this fund and have also 
applied to another of our funds for a different part of the project
Recommend support if funds allow, although not a high priority for this fund.
Priority - No single priority group but will benefit all ages.
Charitable objectives -  to provide the services for beneficiaries.

44



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 22094

Project cost £484.03 Amount requested £484.00
Amount 
recommended

£484.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Eden Timebank Limited
Post Town KIRKBY STEPHEN District Eden

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

75

Aims of the 
group

Eden Timebank members exchange time and services, everyone's time is valued the same, 
every hour given earns 1 Time Credit. Timebanking promotes community spirit and an ethos 
of reciprocity and inclusivity in our area of Appleby, Kirkby Stephen and the surrounding 
villages / hamlets. 
We believe that the real wealth of any society is its people and that every individual has 
valuable experience, skills and connections to contribute to the wellbeing of others in their 
local community - everyone has something to offer. Also, that giving and receiving are the 
basic building blocks of positive social relationships and healthy communities. Timebank 
members become part of a mutually supportive and secure social network.
Eden Timebank aims to improve community cohesion.
Timebanking also helps to reduce volunteer exhaustion as members can use their Time Credits 
when they need some help themselves. This help can take many forms, it could be basic DIY, 
gardening, sewing, companionship, a car lift, shared evenings out or even just a listening ear. 
We also have 3 active groups, Crafty Chats, Garden Blitz and Recipe Swap.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

5 No. of approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£11469.00

Project Details
Project title Public Liability Insurance
Project detail Pay our annual Public Liability Insurance, using a company recommended to us by our 

umbrella organisation, Timebanking UK.
Benefits This comprehensive insurance provided security to our members, whether they are taking part 

in a group activity or they are in another member's home, carrying out a service.
Having this insurance is vital to us, we aim to be a responsible, proactive and conscientious 
organisation.
We would not carry on with our Timebanking without this necessary insurance.

No of beneficiaries 37 No of volunteers 37

Expenditure
Operational costs: £484.00
The full amount of grant would go towards paying our 
insurance premium

Income
Applying 
Elsewhere

No Appleby Town Council for mobile phone cost. Have recently 
submitted a first stage proposal to the Tudor Trust for part time staff 
costs

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Industrial & Provident Society with an asset lock.
Innovative scheme involving a good number of people mainly around Penrith, Appleby and 
Kirkby Stephen, the group have 37 members/volunteers and 1 part time member of staff. Areas 

45



covered depend on members' skills and needs, at the moment the offers and requests range 
from gardening and DIY to helping with knitting and requests for alterations on clothing. They 
have a website where people can join and offer services or request services.  It encourages 
some healthy activity, reduces isolation and increases connection.
Small amount of funding to support volunteers helping each other in the community.
Recommend
Priority- Older people
Charitable objectives - To provide the services to beneficiaries.

46



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 22084

Project cost £110,000.00 Amount requested £2,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Levens Playing Fields
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

160

Aims of the 
group

The group are responsible for the management, enhancement, maintenance and development 
of the Playing Fields. This includes a children's play area, 2 tennis courts, 1 basketball 
area/hardcore football area, Pavilion, 6 pieces of gym equipment, bowling green and grassed 
football pitch.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£750.00

Project Details
Project title New play equipment
Project detail The play park is looking tired and outdated so through a community consultation (early 2019) 

we are in the process of putting in new play equipment. We wish to purchase modern play 
equipment that is more fit for purpose with most of the old equipment being removed. 
We have already raised a considerable amount £80,000 and are now looking to raise the last 
£30,000 to pay for a tractor trailer with fitted slide and a large climbing boulder. 
The funding has already been secured for the tractor with P.V.Dobsons and Massey Ferguson.
 The equipment will be suitable for junior and toddler play. This will also include safety 
matting and will be installed on site.

Need We have carried out a survey monkey and received 50 responses with suggestions for play 
equipment and how we can improve the local park. Respondents were also asked if they would 
like to help
fundraise and take part in a working party to ensure that the play park is sustainable in the 
future.
The school have been extremely supportive, and the children have taken time to think about 
and draw examples of play equipment they would like. The headteacher has also written a 
letter of support of the new play equipment.
The local toddler group in the village have also provided ideas of what equipment they would 
like for that age group.
We continue to update our Facebook page so that the community is aware of what we are 
doing, we have a really high reach rate.

Disadvantage Levens is in a rural location in South Cumbria. There is now a very limited bus service running 
only a couple of times a week and none at weekends. This isolated the village and makes it 
more difficult for young families to get out or incur higher costs.
The new housing estate has a number of affordable homes for families and having a local play 
park that is fit for purpose.
The equipment chosen is also suitable for junior age children not just toddler so that it will 
meet the needs of children who might otherwise be just seen as hanging about.

Benefits The park is a real focal point for families both after school but also at weekends.  It provides an 
opportunity for parents/grandparents to talk and catch up. By providing a wider choice of 
modern play equipment it will provide new learning opportunities. A modern play park will 
attract more families to the village particularly in light of the new housing development which 
has seen an increase in families. The new equipment will be engaging and encourage children 
to play for longer which is beneficial for their wellbeing. The health and wellbeing of all 
involved will be sustained or improved by users being active longer and in the open air. 
The play park is right next to the local primary school and is used regularly by pupils and 47



teachers to enhance the play/P.E opportunities. Please see letter from school in attachments. By 
updating equipment, it will stop a vital resource to Levens from falling into disrepair and 
subsequently not being used by the community. There are many users who come from out of 
the village to use the park which encourages further social cohesion with other communities 
close by.

Measure We will evaluate the work by monitoring numbers using the park and by gauging the reach on 
our Social Media site.
We will also collect qualitative information from our facebook page in terms of personal 
comments and feedback.
We will also be doing both written and video case studies with both young and old to see what 
impact the development will have.
We will report the benefits through the local Parish magazine, through the Parish Council, The 
Westmorland Gazette and through our Social Media Platforms.

After funding 
ends

This will be a one- off payment cost for pieces of equipment but we already have in place a 
system of checking and maintaining play equipment which is covered by rent from the 
Pavilion.
We are also very proactive in the community and regularly hold a variety of fundraising to both 
raise funds and keep the community updated.

No of beneficiaries 500 No of volunteers 20

Expenditure
Capital costs: £2,000.00
Trailer £10,850 (£5,000 already secured)
Boulder £25,650 (£2,000 already secured)

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£80,500.00 Orsted £26,000, LIPs £15,000,Cumbria County Council £1,500, 
South Lakes Housing £1,500, Jim Bland £2,000, Hare and Hounds 
£346, Online donations £195 CAF £275, Furness Building Society 
£150, Levens Charity £5,000, own fundraising £12,000, Levens 
Christmas

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes National Lottery £30,000 Gateway Community Grant £500

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered charity 523066 who manage the pavilion and sports areas as well as the children’s 
play area. The group are fundraising to renew the play equipment, project costs are £110,000 
and they have secured £80,000. They have secured £12k of this from their own fundraising and 
also applied for grants to secure the full project costs.
this is a one-off project ad once upgraded will last for a while.
The boulder is a piece of play equipment that looks like a boulder but due to health and safety 
is safe for play areas. 
Recommend support 
Priority - children & young people
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries.

48



Document is Restricted

49

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017 - 2020 - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND DISTRIBUTIONS
	Holehird Income & Expenditure for Meeting 05.03.20
	Holehird Balance Sheet for Meeting 05.03.20
	Holehird Notes for Meeting 05.03.20
	Holehird Schedule of Grants Paid for Meeting 05.03.20

	6 GRANT APPLICATIONS
	Sandylands Deferred application
	21811 Common Space Common Humanity Deferred application
	21979 Penrith Mountain Rescue Team
	21993 Arnside Sailing Club
	22033a Friends of Crossthwaite School
	22068 Kendal Community Theatre
	22094 Eden timebank
	22084 Levens playing fields

	8 PROPERTY MATTERS

